1: 31: 45 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair

Thonpson

HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
March 16, 2015
1:31 p.m

called the House Finance Committee

nmeeting to order at 1:31 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve

ALSO PRESENT

Representati ve
Representative
Comm ssi oner,

Sti dol ph,
Director,
Pr of essi onal

Staff,
Di vi si on
Li censi ng,

Mar k Neuman, Co-Chair

St eve Thonpson, Co-Chair
Dan Saddl er, Vice-Chair
Les Gara

Lynn Gattis

David Guttenberg

Scott Kawasaki

Cat hy Munoz

Lance Pruitt

Tamm e W1 son

Bryce Edgnon

M ke Chenault, Sponsor; Staff,
M ke Chenaul t; Ed

Depart nent of Nat ur al
Representative Kurt O son; Sara Chanbers

of Cor por ati ons, Busi ness and

Department of Comerce, Conmunity

Tom Wi ght,
Fogel s, Deputy
Resour ces; Laura

and Econom c Devel opnent .

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Kris Curtis, Legislative Auditor, Alaska Division of

Legislative Audit.
SUMVARY

HB 26 EXTEND CERT. DI RECT- ENTRY M DW VES BQOARD

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 03/16/15 1:31 P. M



HB 26 was REPORTED out of committee with a

recommendat i on” recommendation and wth
previously published fiscal inpact note:
(CED) .

HB 115 AK SOVEREI GNTY; US TRANSFER LAND TO ALASKA

HB 115 was HEARD and HELD in conmttee
further consideration.

1:32: 33 PM

Co- Chair Thonpson di scussed the neeting agenda.

#hb115
HOUSE BI LL NO. 115

"An Act relating to the transfer of public land from

the federal governnent to the state and to

di sposal of that land; and providing for an effective

date."

1: 32: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M KE CHENAULT, SPONSCR, read the sponsor

statenent (copy on file):

Comm ttee Substitute for House Bill 115 (RES) enacts
the Al aska Sovereignty and Transfer of Federal Public

Lands to Al aska Act. The bill requires that the United
States to transfer title to public lands to Al aska on
or before January 1, 2017. The bill also affirns

Al aska’s state sovereignty under the Ninth and Tenth

Amendments to the U S. Constitution.

Al though there are a nunber of state and federal
constitutional i ssues regar di ng t he provi si ons
contained within the bill, this bill was introduced
since the 35-year deadline from the time Al aska was

admtted into the Union as provided wthin

Statehood Act, PL 85-508, is long past. | Dbelieve

there is a breach of good faith since the state
still entitled to and awaiting the transfer of

remaining 5.5 mllion acres. Thus far the state has

recei ved patent to about 99.5 mllion acres.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 03/16/15 1:31 P. M



Currently, the state has 10.9 mllion acres of
selections fromwhich to receive its 5.5 mllion acres
of entitlement as well as 10.2 mllion acres of top-
filings that may eventually becone selections should
applicable withdrawals be Ilifted. These w thdrawals
come in nunerous varieties of federal action and
processes. Two commopn executive branch actions that
create wthdrawals are Public Land Oders (PLGs,
issued by the Departnent of the Interior) and
Executive Orders issued by the President.

The committee substitute for House Bill 115 (RES)
requires the federal government to turn over all |ands
held by the federal government to the state subject to
acceptance by the state with the exception of |ands
used for mlitary pur poses i ncl udi ng mlitary
reservations.

At this tinme according to the Departnent of Natural
Resources, there are approximately 222 mllion acres
wi thin Al aska under federal ownership.

1:36:12 PM

Representative Chenault relayed that he was open to
guesti ons.

Co- Chair Thonpson pointed to the Legislative Legal opinion
that the bill would be unconstitutional.

Representative Chenault agreed that the bill mght be
unconstitutional, but that the court system would need to
make the final determ nation, not the |egal opinion of one

| awyer .

Representative Gara felt that the legal opinion clearly
stated that the bill was wunconstitutional. He queried
whet her the sponsor knew of any provision in the US.
Constitution that allowed a state to take federal land from
t he federal governnent.

TOM WRI GHT, STAFF, REPRESENTATI VE M KE CHENAULT, replied in
t he negati ve.

Representative Gara noted that simlar Jlaws had been

enacted; a 1982 initiative that had demanded that the
federal government return all federal land within the state

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 03/16/15 1:31 P. M



was deemed unconstitutional by the U S. Attorney General
no novenent had occurred on the issue for 32 years. He

furthered that in Uah a simlar bill had been passed,
which had forced that state to set aside $2 nmllion for
[itigation purposes. He feared that the bill would result

in future litigation cost to Al aska.

M. Wight answered that the path to litigation would be
determ ned by the courts system and the governor. He shared
that the "Tundra Rebellion”, passed in 1983, was not
enacted because the U S. Attorney General took issue wth
the law. He argued that the state had been waiting for 35
years to receive approximately 5.5 mllion acres, which
required that a strong nessage be sent to Congress.

Representative Gara wondered whether the bill could be
limted to the transfer of |ands that had been promsed to
t he state upon statehood.

M. Wight replied that it would be up to the will of the
conmittee.

Co- Chair Thonpson noted that departnment staff were online
for questions.

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er spoke to the zero fiscal note. He asked
where anticipated |egal expenses to defend the |egislation
woul d conme from

M. Wi ght pointed out that the fiscal note was
i ndeterm nate, not zero, because the legal costs were yet
unknown.

Vi ce-Chair Saddler asked about the Legislative Research
Services Brief that discussed land outside of wldlife
refuges and nonunents. He wondered about the timng of the
bill.

M. Wight replied that the bill was related to tim ng due
to the president's orders to set aside nore of Alaska's
| and for conservation.

1:42: 23 PM

Representative Cuttenberg wondered whether the state was
behind in the survey work necessary to transfer nost of the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 03/16/15 1:31 P. M



land and, if so, should the state be working on that issue
whi |l e sinmul taneously pushing the | egislation.

Representative Chenault deferred the question to the
Department of Natural Resources. He added that there could
be reasons to hold back on certain |land sel ections because
ot her sel ections could becone avail abl e.

Representative Quttenberg asked whether the ninth and tenth
anendnents had ever been used successfully when arguing
simlar cases on court.

M. Wight replied that the anmendnents had been included in
the backup docunents for the bill in order to highlight
state sovereignty over certain issues.

Representative GQuttenberg restated his question.

M. Wight believed that Utah was currently using those
anendnents to argue a simlar court case.

1: 44: 38 PM

ED FOGELS, DEPUTY COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL
RESOURCES, added that of the 100 mllion acres of Iand
received by the state through the Statehood Land

Entitlenment, 65 mllion had been surveyed and patented to
the state; approximately 35 mllion had yet to be surveyed
and were considered "tentatively approved.”" He furthered

that the 35 mllion acres essentially belonged to the
state, to manage as it w shed, and that the survey backl og
was not currently limting the state's ability to fully
utilize its | ands.

Representative GQuttenberg spoke to the conflict of property
transfers anmong land owners sharing property lines. He
wondered how far along the state was concerning resolution
on native allotnment and over-sel ection issues.

M. Fogels thought that the question was broad and would
require and extended amount of tine for a response. He
explained that the issues were ongoing and that the
department was nandated by law to transfer lands to
muni ci palities; sonme nmunicipalities had conpleted their
entitlements, some had not. He continued that there were
many issues related to native allotnents and the Bureau of

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 03/16/15 1:31 P. M



Land Managenent (BLM had conveyed many allotnents to-date.
He opined that the world of |and nanagenment was conpl ex.

Representative GQuttenberg asked how quickly the state could
take the transfer of |and, were the issues to be settled
and the legislation were to pass.

M. Fogels felt he could not answer the question. He said
that if the courts determined the additional 200 acres
would be awarded to the states then it wuld be a
significant task to identify which lands, in addition to
the Statehood Land Entitlenent |ands, would be given to the
st at e.

1:48: 49 PM

Representative WIlson felt that the fiscal note should be
zero, and not indeterm nate, because there would be no
fiscal inpact until a decision was made to litigate the
i ssue.

M. Fogels responded that the departnment's fiscal note was
based on the assunption the bill would be successful. He
said that the note accounted for the process and the
addi tional | and managenent by DNR He added that additiona
revenues to the state could be expected. He stressed that
the fiscal note was purely related to |and managenent and
did not consider litigation expenses.

Representative WIlson felt that the fiscal inpact of the
bill should be viewed as a budget issue for the sake of
accuracy.

M. Fogels replied that the departnent had been asked to
provide a fiscal note for potential costs due to additional
| and managenent .

Representative WIson hoped that the departnment would
further scrutinize the fiscal note.

Co- Chair Neuman wondered whet her the federal governnent, or
the state, would decide which | ands woul d be returned.

1:52:11 PM

M. Wight replied that approximately 5.4 mllion acres of
| and had been allotted to the state through the statehood

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 03/16/15 1:31 P. M



act, 10.9 mllion acres of selections to receive the
allotnment, and 10.2 mllion additional acres of |and that
was considered "top filed", a contingent selection where
the land would be subject to federal restrictions or
wi thdrawal s; the state could not take these |ands but by
executive order on the federal l|level. He gave an exanpl e of
land that was rich with mneral deposits along Trans-Al aska
Pi peline System (TAPS) that was currently under top filing
status and was unavailable to the state. He noted that no

wi | derness refuges had been included in the bill. He
thought that it would be financially prudent to exclude
national parks fromthe bill because the state would not be

able to afford to nmaintain them

Co-Chair Neuman surmsed that the legislation asked the
federal government to turn requested |ands back over to the
state for resource devel opnent.

M. Wight believed there was w de national support for
western states to win the transfer of federal public |and
back to states, mainly to open up utilization of the public
| and.

Co-Chair Neuman repeated the question as to whether the
bill would allow the state to select lands that it felt
woul d be beneficial to the state.

1: 55: 54 PM

M. Fogels responded that the state had 5.4 mllion acres
left to go in its entitlenments and that the state had
selections on approximately 10.1 mllion acres, and an
additional 10.3 top filed. He said that the state had to
conplete the statehood land entitlenent process. He stated
that the bill offered a strong recommendation that public
| and orders be lifted by the federal governnment to allow
the state to broaden its selection pool of land. He shared
that valuable lands had been identified that the state
would like to control. He said that the bill would require
the federal governnment to give additional |[|ands; not
specified, and lands could be rejected that were deened to
not be in the state's best interest.

Co- Chair Neuman surm sed that the state needed the land i
order to diversify the econony. He believed that the bi
woul d create jobs for the state.

n
I

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 03/16/15 1:31 P. M



1:58:10 PM

Representati ve Kawasaki asked about the acreage of state
park |and nmanaged by the state. M. Fogels replied that the
state currently had approximately 3 mllion acres in the
state park system

Representative Kawasaki wondered whether the fiscal note
for the bill would be increased by the state adopting the
entire 54 mllion acres of park land currently under the
federal government.

M. Fogels replied that there was the possibility that
revenue could be generated by acquiring the additional
| ands, but that a way to zero out the fiscal note had yet
to be determ ned.

Representati ve Kawasaki thought that if the state were to
assunme the 54 acres of federal park land it would be a cost
to the state. He opined clean water responsibilities that
the state took over in 2008, as well as wetlands permtting
in 2013, both of which had been of additional cost to the
state, and wondered if the legislation would produce
simlar results.

2:01:25 PM

M. Wight replied that the sponsor intended to ask one of
the finance conmmittee nenbers to introduce an anendnent
t hat woul d excl ude national parKks.

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er pointed to page 2, lines 5 through 6:

(b) The affirmation, reservation, and assertion in (a)
of this section include the reservation of the rights
of the state to claima credit or setoff for any
anount or injury inequitably or unlawfully caused or

clainmed by the federal governnent.

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er asked whether there was a listing of the
possi ble amounts identified in the section, and whether
there was an estinmate of the potential value of those
i njuries.

M. Fogels answered that he would provide the information
to the commttee at a |ater date.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 03/16/15 1:31 P. M



Representative Gara asked whether the 5.4 mllion acres
left to transfer to the state from the federal governnent
were in dispute.

M. Fogels replied no, the 5.4 mllion acres were the
remaining land entitlenent. He reiterated that there were
10.1 million acres of land in "selection status”, of which
sel ections had been prioritized, and that the state could
ask for conveyance of those lands at any tine. He shared

that the "choicest” lands to the state were in the second
group of top filed |Iands and anmobunted to an additional 10.3
mllion acres. Those choice lands were currently off-limts

to the departnent because of the federal |and wthdrawals.
He stressed that it was inportant that the Departnent of
the Interior list the public land orders so that the state
could broaden the selection pool to the full 20.4 mllion
acres to choose from He argued that the public |land orders
no longer served a purpose and should be lifted by the
Department of the Interior.

2:05: 08 PM

Vice-Chair Saddler wondered if there had been any
indication of wllingness, or resistance, by the BLM to
conply with the goals of the bill. M. Fogels believed that

the BLM and Departnent of the Interior were reluctant to
lift the public land orders. He relayed that Governor
Wal ker had nmet with Departnent of the Interior Secretary
Sally Jewell to discuss the issue. He state that the BLM
woul d convey the state anything that was a valid state
selection fairly expeditiously. He reiterated that he was
speaking only to the statehood land entitlenent; he could
not answer how the federal governnent would react to the
bill in regard to additional |ands.

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er asked whether passage of the bill would
encourage federal authorities to nove nore expeditiously
with the conveyance of state l|lands or other federal |ands
to the state.

M. Fogels thought that the bill would help to lift the
public | and orders.

Representative Gara reiterated concern that the bill was
unconstitutional. He hypothesized that if Al aska could take
what ever federal land it wanted, what would stop other

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 03/16/15 1:31 P. M



states from acting simlarly, to the detrinment of the
country.

M. Wight thought that decisions pertaining to the
hypot hetical situation would be determ ned on a state-by-
state basis.

Representative Gara offered the exanple of the state of
Kentucky taking over t he Uni t ed St ates M nt and
subsequent |y destroying the econonmy on the federal |evel.

M. Wight responded that he could not speak to the
exanpl e.

Representative Gara added that Pennsylvania could take and
sell the Liberty Bell.

M. Wight rebutted that he could not speak to the
intentions of other state, nor answer rhetorical questions.

Co- Chair Thonpson deduced that Representative Gara was
speaking to material things, whereas the bill discussed
land and the states right to the land after 50 years of
wai ti ng.

Representative Gara stated that his concern was for passing
a bill that was unconstitutional. He requested a fiscal
note and an opinion fromthe Departnent of Law.

Co- Chair Thonpson argued that the conmttee was not at the
poi nt of appropriating noney, but bringing the subject to
the forefront by alerting the federal governnment that the
state was ready to take back the | and.

Representative Gara shared that the State of Utah had
passed a simlar bill, which had garnered little response
from the federal governnment. He said that nothing had
happened in Uah for two years because the bill was
unenforceable. He stated no litigation had been filed
because the bill was unconstitutional. He wondered whet her
the bill was the appropriate vehicle for gaining the
attention of the federal governnment.

Co- Chair Thonpson contended that if nore states filed bil
of a simlar type, the federal governnment mght revisit the
i ssue of conveyance of lands to states. He believed that
the bill was a good start in a possible national novenent.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 03/16/15 1:31 P. M



Vi ce- Chair Saddl er requested an overview of the devel opnent
of public land ownership in the Eastern United States
verses the Western United States.

2:11: 58 PM

Representative Chenault replied that he could not provide a
history. He said that as states becanme states, nore |and
from each wound up under federal control. He related that
t he biggest problem that Congress faced when Al aska becane
a state was the state's small population and |arge |and
mass; there was fear that Alaska would becone another
colony, leaving the federal governnment to take care of the
state's needs. He felt that, because approximtely 62
percent of the Alaska's land was currently under federal
authority, the state had not been able to develop its
resources to sustain its econony. He suggested that the
state m ght not have to rely on federal dollars for certain
progranms if it was allowed to develop its lands in a
responsi ble manner. He remarked that that initial fear of
Congress was what had occurred, not because of Alaska's
| ack of ingenuity, but because the federal governnent had
not allowed the state to develop its |and. He believed that
the legality of the bill should be decided in court.

Representative Minoz understood that |ands that were top-
filed related to new land designations on prelimnarily
selected |ands. She asked whether the top-filing happened
before or after the | ands had been identified by the state.

M. Wight deferred the question to the departnent.

M. Fogels answered that top-filed neant that the |and was
wanted by the state, but that the land could not becone an
officially selected parcel because of federal action. He
said that clean federal |and, nmanaged by the Bureau of Land
Managenent would be a valid selection; top-filings were a
selection on top of a federal wthdrawal and not an
official selection allowed by Alaska National Interest
Lands Conservation Act (AN LCA).

2:16: 08 PM

Representative Munoz surm sed that top-filing could include
desi gnations for refuges, parks, and national forest | and.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 11 03/16/15 1:31 P. M



M. Fogels replied in the negative. He explained that all
of the selections and top-filings were on BLM I and,
mul ti ple use federal |ands, and the state had no sel ections
on refuges. He shared that national forests were handled
differently, the state had a special "flavor" of selection,
particularly in Southeast Al aska. He provided an exanple of
the pipeline corridor; when TAPS was first built BLM put a
wi thdrawal called Public Land Order 5150 from Prudhoe Bay
to Valdez. He explained that any BLM within the corridor
was w thdrawn from state selection, resulting in a narrow
right-of-way. He furthered that the selections within the
corridor were not valid selections, but top-filings,
meani ng that as soon as the federal governnment lifted the
public land order the top-filings would turn into valid
sel ecti ons.

Representative Minoz asked why the state was not selecting
land within the 10.1 mllion acres that were still valid
for selection. M. Fogels replied there was valuable |and
in the 10.1 mllion acres of selected |ands, the issue was
that there was also valuable and in the other 10.3 mllion
acres of top-filed land, sonme of which was even nore
desi rabl e.

Representative Minoz surmsed that the 10.1 mllion acres
was unencunbered with top-filing and the |egislation would
lift the top-file designation on the 10.3 mllion acres,
further expanding the pool of Jland that state could
request .

M. Fogels replied in the affirmative.

Vi ce-Chair Saddler asked for verification that the bil
would not require the transfer of mlitary bases. M.
Wight replied in the affirmative.

2:19:56 PM

Representative (Quttenberg understood that asking the
federal governnent renove its restrictions would allow the
state to expand its selection criteria.

M. Fogels reiterated that the state was entitled to 5.4
mllion acres under the Statehood Land Entitlenent, where
those 5.4 mllion acres were chosen from was the question
The state wished to grow the pool to choose that acreage
fromto 20.4 mllion acres.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 12 03/16/15 1:31 P. M



Representative QCuttenberg wondered how many enployees in
the departnent interacted with federal |and managers. M.
Fogels replied that the departnent interacted with federa
enpl oyees on many issues, on a daily basis. He said that he
coul d not provide a nunber related to the issue.

2:22:30 PM

Representative Quttenberg asked whether the departnent was
actively pursuing lands that were rich in heavy netals.

M. Fogels replied that nost of the lands currently nanaged
by the state were open to mneral entry; there were a
nunber of mneral prospects begin worked throughout the
state. He said that the state encouraged and increase in
the mning industry and recognized that responsible mning
practices contributes greatly to Alaska s econony. He
assured the comrittee that the departnment was encouragi ng
additional responsible mning in the state.

HB 115 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

Co- Chair Thonpson requested to be a co-sponsor of the
| egi sl ati on.

#hb26
HOUSE BILL NO. 26

"An Act extending the term nation date of the Board of
Certified Direct-Entry Mdw ves; and providing for an
effective date.”

2:24: 35 PM

LAURA STI DOLPH, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE KURT OLSON, relayed
that the bill would extend the sunset date of certified
direct entry mdwives to June 30, 2017; a two-year
extension. She noted that the board' s deficit and audit
i ssues had been discussed during a previous hearing and
that there were people on hand to speak to those specific
i ssues.

2:25: 59 PM

Co- Chair Thonpson relayed that the fiscal note reflected
$5, 500 of expenditures for board travel and advertising of

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 03/16/15 1:31 P. M



neetings. He related that in FY 14 the board' s revenue
total was $3,990, while expenditures were $55,795;, a
deficit of $51,805. He said that the board had a current
operating deficit of over $115,000, and had been in deficit
spending since 2008. He shared that licensing fees had
increased, and were due for another increase in spring
2014, but with the limted nunber of mdwi ves in the state,
how the board wuld catch up wth the deficit was
guesti onabl e.

Ms. Stidolph answered that with the board bearing the
burden of the Jlarge cost of investigations, even an
increase in the board' s fees would not cover the deficit.
She deferred the question to the departnment for further
det ail .

Co- Chair Thonpson understood that Legislative Budget and
Audit (LB&A) had been tasked with reviewing the board and
woul d be com ng forward wi th recomrendati ons.

SARA CHAMBERS, DI RECTOR, DI VI SION OF CORPORATI ONS, BUSI NESS
AND  PROFESSI ONAL LI CENSI NG, DEPARTMENT OF COMVERCE

COVWUNI TY AND ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT, stated that the fisca

note spoke to the expenses that were particular to the
board; if the board were to sunset the division would
continue to license mdw ves and would relieve |icensees of
t he expense of board travel, which was the only isolatable
expense in regard to the board itself. She agreed that the
board had been in a deficit position and had been working
toward an assertive and neaningful to the budget. She
rel ayed that fees had been increased for both m dw ves and
apprentices; mdwi ves now paid the highest I|icensing fee
charges by the division: $1,750 every two years. She added
that the apprentice fees had risen from over $100 to over
$900 in 2013. She noted that it would take several nore
increases and continued attenpts to rein in spending and
get out of the deficit positon, but with a very snall
nunber of licensees that could take several |icensing
cycl es.

Co- Chair Thonpson observed that nost of the deficit was due
to investigations. Ms. Chanbers replied in the affirmative.
She added that investigations figured promnently in the
| egi slative audit findings.

Co- Chair Thonpson highlighted the LB&A criticism of the
departnment for not pursuing 4 different mdw fery cases.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 14 03/16/15 1:31 P. M



Ms. Chanbers responded that there were several cases that
had been referred to the Departnent of Laws Ofice of
Speci al Prosecutions and Appeals that had not been foll owed
up on and had been deenmed a low priority. She said that at
the time the agency had not done its due diligence to
follow up on the cases, but that since had corrected the
issue putting new safeguards into place to double check
files sent over to sister agencies; in addition, an expert
W tness had been retained to review the cases to determ ne
whi ch of the agencies was nobst appropriate for each case
She explained that the licensees involved in the cases in
guestion had refused to sign a consent agreenent. She
assured the conmittee that the division was actively
pursuing renedies to the problens.

Co-Chair Thonmpson asked if there was any chance of
recoupi ng the investigation expenditures.

2:32: 14 PM

Ms. Chanbers answered no. She shared that there was a
proposal in the budget that would give the board and the
di vision the opportunity recoup fines to help nmtigate sone
of the expenses.

Co- Chair Thonpson observed term nating the board woul d cost
the state nore noney than renewi ng the sunset date.

Ms. Chanbers replied that she was not famliar with the
nunbers.

Representative WIlson queried the difference between
retaining the board, and allowng the Ilicenses to be
handl ed by the departnent.

Ms. Chanbers replied that the board currently had the
ability to review and approve |icenses, which would revert
back to the division. She said that the board handl ed nost
of the admnistrative elenents, including investigative,
which allowed for public deliberation that would not be
al | oned under the departnent.

Representative WI1son expressed concern that the fiscal

note did not reflect the $115,000 deficit. She asked who
pai d the $115, 000 when it was not being paid by the board.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 03/16/15 1:31 P. M



Ms. Chanbers answered that the division had appropriation
authority. She added that board was in a deficit position

whi ch departnent was working actively to correct, and the
appropriation authority was being covered by boards that
were in a surplus position. She stated that that this
happened on an annual basis by nature because there was one
time, every two years that a board would bring in revenue
t hat was neaningful during their renewal period and offset
the prograns that had opposing biennial revenue periods.
She stated that the funds were not mxed in the sense that
the operations were being paid for by another because of
the carry forward, but at the higher appropriation |evel
all of the licensing prograns were able to be solvent to
stay in the bl ack.

2:36: 24 PM

Representative WIson wondered if another audit when the
bill would be up again for sunset in two years.

Ms. Chanbers deferred the question to the Division of
Legi sl ative Audit.

KRIS CURTIS, LEG SLATIVE AUDI TOR, ALASKA DIVISION OF
LEG SLATIVE AUDIT (via teleconference), replied if the
board recei ved an extension, another sunset review would be
triggered by statute. She said that given the sort
timeframe since the last audit she expected the field work
woul d take less tine, but another audit woul d be conduct ed.

Co- Chair Thonpson understood that LB&A planned to exam ne
the board and nake a recommendati on.

Ms. Curtis answered that the current review by that
commttee had not factored into the suggested sunset date.

Representative WIson asked how nmuch the nobst recent audit
had cost. M. Curtis replied that the division did not
track the cost of audits. She shared that an hourly rate of
approximately $67 per hour had been calculated, so that
could be multiplied by the 1,100 hours it took to conduct
the audit. She explained that a typical sunset occupationa
board audit took approximately 500 to 600 hours to
conplete. She relayed that this particular board audit took
| onger because of the nature of the problens that were
found and because it had been done by a new auditor.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 03/16/15 1:31 P. M



2:39:30 PM

Representative Gattis felt that not hearing from the board
was limting the conversation. She queried the purpose of
the board. She asserted that she was pro-mdw fe, but she
believed the board had struggled. She relayed that she took
i ssue with extending the board another two years.

Ms. Chanbers noted that the departnent had invited the
board to address the committee. She believed it would be
appropriate for the board to provide input during conmttee
di scussi ons.

Co- Chair Thonpson asked whether the increase in fees would
affect the nunber of mdw ves paying into the |I|icensing
pool .

Ms. Chanbers replied that it was a possibility. She said
that it was always a concern, not specific to mdwfery,
that a rise in fees would cause people to drop out of
| i censure.

2:41:55 PM

Representative Quttenberg pointed out that the audit cited
a division failure for some of the board' s issues. He
wondered how much of the financial problens of the board
could be attributed to the departnent.

Ms. Curtis answered that 100 percent of the cause for the
reduced extension was due to the division and not the
board. She related that areas for inprovenent would always
be found; but in regards to the severity of the problens,
the majority were at the division |evel.

Representative Gara surmsed that the board had done
nothing wong, and queried the logic of the I|inmted
ext ensi on.

Ms. Curtis did not view the recomrendati on as a puni shnent.
She asserted that legislative audit was the |egislatures
monitoring mechanism the two-year extension was given
because the issues were so inportant and worth the cost to
cone back to the table to ensure that the problens
recogni zed in the audit were handl ed.

2:45:14 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 17 03/16/15 1:31 P. M



Representative Gara argued that the audit punished the
board by <creating uncertainty. He did not think that
threatening the board was the proper way to get the
departnment to do its job

Ms. Curtis relied that it was difficult to explain the
reasoning pertaining to board action versus division
action, and how that factored into an extension. She
rem nded the commttee that it was only a recommendation

she woul d present the report and provide information but it
woul d be up to policy makers to make the final decision.

Representative Gara recommended that the board be given a
full extension. He asked if fee increases were the only way
that the board could nmaintain its finances.

Ms. Chanbers answered that the departnment was fully in
conpliance wth legislative audit's recomendations and
took full responsibility in the areas of deficiency. She
stated that the division would set fees with the advice and
input of the board. She believed that sone of the
responsibility lay with the board continuing to rein in
spending and refining decision making processes to reduce
expendi t ur es.

2:49:19 PM

Representative Pruitt read from the letter from the Board
of Direct-Entry Mdw ves chair, Cheryl Corrick, |ocated
within the audit:

"Reconmendati on No. 2:

| concur with this recomendation, with reservations.
The Board has requested that, in addition to the
proposed increases in licensing fees for CDMs, the
Division also increase apprentice licensing fees to
50% of CDM fees. The Board sees this as a potential
way to help neet the shortfall. So far, the Board's
request has been denied over the past two years."

Representative Pruitt wondered why the board's suggestion
had not been consi dered.

Ms. Chanbers answer ed t hat t he i ncrease had been

inplemented but that it affected a snmall nunmber  of
m dwi ves. She said that fees would need to be increased

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 03/16/15 1:31 P. M



again in order to keep up with rate of spending while
trying to chip away at the negative carry forward.

Representative Pruitt wondered whether the division had the
ability to recoup <costs of the investigations from
individuals found to be at fault. He asked whether the
departnment had, or should have, the ability to recoup costs
of investigations involving unlicensed individuals.

Ms. Chanbers answered that the division did not currently

have the ability to recoup <costs from Ilicensed or
unlicensed individuals; it wuld require a statutory
change.

Representative Pruitt asked whether the chall enges found by
the audit were related to the board or the departnent.

Ms. Curtis replied that nost of the problens stemed from
t he departnent.

Representative Pruitt asked whether simlar challenges were
faced by other boards. He requested suggestions from
| egi slative audit on how to fix the problem

Ms. Curtis replied that the extension reduction was being
driven by the investigative problens, which were specific
to the mdwi fe cases and were not found in other boards;
this was not a division-wide problem She spoke to fee
setting. She relayed that if a board was significantly in a
deficit, legislative audit would make a recomendati on t hat
the board work with the division to set fees appropriately.
She pointed out to the commttee that a fee schedule could
be found in the audit. She said that deficits could vary
wi dely and that the situation could be tricky when setting
fees as a response to a spike in expenditures. She
furthered that the audit perforned in FY 06, had an annua
licensing fee of over $2,000 biannually. She stressed that
this was not a new problem for the board.

2:55:27 PM

Representative Wl son pointed to page 2 of the fiscal note.
She wondered what the licenses would cost if the board were
to di ssol ve

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 03/16/15 1:31 P. M



Ms. Chanbers answered that the nunbers in the fiscal note
would be different if the division were to nanage the
licensing programdifferently.

Representative WIson wondered who would pay for the
investigations if the board were dissol ved.

Ms. Chanbers replied that |icensees always recouped the
costs of investigations, the existence of the board would
not change the licensing structure.

Representative WIlson surmsed that no matter what, the
licensees would have to pay the fee if they wanted to
remain legally |icensed.

Ms. Chanbers replied in the affirmative.

Representative WIson expressed unhappiness wth the
problens faced by the mdw ves. She worried that m dw ves

would end up wth licensing fees that they could not
af f or d.

Representative Pruitt clarified that |icensing would stil
exist even if the board disbanded. He felt that the
m dwi ves woul d be penalized if the bill did not go forward

in the process. He thought that the |egislation highlighted
that something was broken within the departnment and not
with the board or the m dw ves.

2:59: 30 PM

Representative GGattis reiterated her concern that the
commttee had not heard from the board. She strongly
believed input fromthe board was needed.

Ms. Stidolph agreed that a board nenber's input would be
val uabl e.

Co-Chair Thonpson believed the board needed to exist. He
expressed concern at the cost of the audit for a board that
oversaw few licensees. He felt that the problem should be
reexamned in 2 years after the legislature received a
recommendation from Legislative Budget and Audit. He
t hought that passing the legislation would allow the board
to continue to be involved in the ongoing education and
certification of mdw ves.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 20 03/16/15 1:31 P. M



Representative WIson reiterated concern of what could
happen if the conmmttee i medi ately did not hing.

Representative Gara requested clarification on the cost of
t he audit.

Co-Chair Thonpson explained that the audit took 1,100
hour s, billed out at $67 per hour, resulting in
approximately $74,000 total.

Representative Gara noved a conceptual amendnent to extend
the term nation date to 3-years.

Co-Chair Thonpson said that the problem was that the costs
of investigations were being placed on boards that were not
responsible for the problens being investigated. He
reiterated that it would be prudent to wait for the
recommendati ons that LB&A woul d provide in 2 years.

3:04: 57 PM

Representative Gara w thdrew the conceptual amendnent.

Co- Chair Neuman MOVED to REPORT HB 26 out of conmittee with
i ndi vidual recommendations and the acconpanying fiscal
note. There being NO OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

HB 26 was REPORTED out of commttee wth a "no
recommendati on"” recommendation and wth one previously
publ i shed fiscal inpact note: FN1 (CED)

Co- Chair Thonpson discussed the agenda for the follow ng
day.

#
ADJ OURNVENT

3:.06: 23 PM
The neeting was adjourned at 3:06 p. m

House Fi nance Conmmittee 21 03/16/15 1:31 P. M



